Ministry of Transport and Roads of the Kyrgyz Republic

Construction Environmental Management Work Plan

<u>CAREC Corridor 3 Bishkek-Osh Road Rehabilitation</u> <u>Performance Based Management Contract; Kara-Balta –</u> <u>Suusamyr (68.5 km)</u>

April 2019

This Construction Environmental Management Work Plan (CEMWP) has been prepared by EPTISA Servicios De Ingeniería S.L./ Eptisa Muhendislik / RAM for MoTR. The CEMWP is a document of Borrower

Project Details

г

Project title: Central Asia Regional Corridor 3 (Bishkek-Osh Road) Improvement Project Phase 4 for Engineering and Construction Supervision	<u>Client;</u> Ministry Transport and Roads of the Kyrgyz Republic (MoTR)
<u>Contacts:</u>	Name of contact persons: MoTR: Mr. Ruslan Satybaldiev, Director of Investment Projects Implementation Group (IPIG) Address:42, Isanov Street Bishkek 720017,Kyrgyz Republic Facsimile:+996 312 314378 E-mail : bishkekoshroad@infotel.kg
Date of contract signature: 19 th December 2014 Date of the Commencement of the Contract: 10 th January 2015 End of the Contract Date: 30 th April 2020	The Consultant's name, address, telephone & fax, email: Emilio Munoz 35-37 28037 Madrid, Spain Fax: + 34 915 473 934 Eptisa Ankara: Serdar Hakkaçırmaz Project Director on behalf of Eptisa Phone: +90 312 439 38 62 Fax: +90 312 439 09 41 E-mail: shakkacirmaz@eptisa.com
	Name of Team Leader and email: Mr. Hakan Nemutlu Team Leader E-mail: <u>hnemutlu@eptisa.com</u> Office: +996 312 314027

Table of Contents

1. Designation	. 3
2. The Performance-Based Contract	. 3
3. Project Area Description	. 3
3.1. Physical Environment	. 4
3.2. Ecological Environment	. 4
3.3. Social Environment	. 5
4. Scope of Work	. 5
4.1 Volume of the main construction work	. 6
4.2 List of Machinery and equipment	. 8
4.3. Work Details	. 9
4.1.1. Special Work for Year 1 and 2	10
4.4. Application of Better Environmental Safeguards	11
5.0. The Screening Checklist	11
6.0. The Construction Environmental Management Work Plan (CEMWP)	17
6.1. Technical/Legislative Capacity and Enforcement	17
6.2. Implementation Arrangements and Timetable	18
6.3. Mitigation and Monitoring Details	18
6.3.1. Pre- implementation Period Actions	18
6.3.2. Implementation Period Actions	18
6.3.3 Post-Implementation Period Actions	19
7.0 CEMWP Implementation Cost	45

APPENDIXES	46
Appendix 1 Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan	46
Appendix 2	
Safety, Health and Hygiene Plan	48
Appendix 3	
Details of waste management plan	49

List of Tables

Table 1 Volume of the main construction work	6
Table 2 Additional work in 2019	8
Table 3 List of machinery and equipment	8
Table 4 Screening Checklist	12
Table 5 Construction Environmental Management Work Plan: Environmental Mitigation Table (EMiT)	20
Table 6: Construction Environmental Management Work Plan - Environmental Monitoring Table (EMc	υT)
	31
Table 7: CEMWP Implementation Cost Estimate (Person Days)	45

List of figures

gure 1 Photos of the project area16

1. Designation

The project CAREC Corridor 3 Bishkek-Osh Road has been assigned to B-category and the Initial Environmental Examination (IEE) was prepared. As the Performance Based Management Component has been added to the original project scope, it was required that the IEE be updated in accordance with ADB's SPS 2009. Due to the small-scale of impact magnitude and the nature of activities, it was agreed between ADB and the Ministry of Transportation and Roads (MoTR) that a simplified Initial Environmental Examination (IEE) in a form of an environmental management plan (EMP) would be developed. This project does not require any environmental assessment under Kyrgyz law. Under Kyrgyz law No. 60 of 13/02/2015, no environmental assessment of any type is required for standard road maintenance work.

2. The Performance-Based Contract

This project is being developed as a performance-based-contract dealing with the basic maintenance of an existing and operating national highway between Kara-Balta and Suusamyr. The existing average daily traffic volumes ranges from 8000 to 13.000 veh/d, of which between 8% and 22% are buses and trucks¹; in other words a heavily travelled road.

The work will involve simple highway maintenance activities including:

- cleaning/sweeping of the carriageway and shoulders,
- patching and crack sealing,
- cleaning and replacing of damaged road signs, road markings,
- local short distance resurfacing and surface dressings Works;
- pothole repair; and,
- repair of damaged retaining walls.

No work is to take place outside the existing carriageway-shoulder width of the road and no new construction or realignment is proposed. Further, no slope cutting of filling will be undertaken, rather clean up at pre-existing destabilized slopes and possible repair work may be conduction, based on road safety issues.

3. Project Area Description

The project road is a section of the Bishkek-Osh corridor from km 61 to 129.5, located in the Chuï Province, Jayil rayon. Total length of project roads is 68.5 km and a detailed inventory of all assets along the road, including structures, signs and culverts, pipes is found in Annex 6 of the contract technical specifications.

Starting at the roundabout before the access road to the city of Kara-Balta at km 61 up to km 95, the road traverses relatively flat and open terrain, with some agricultural land use on either side of the highway. After km 95 the alignment becomes more undulating as it enters the mountainous terrain, with steeper grades and more curves in the road. The only settlement crossed is Sosnovka village.Besides, there are such villages as Kairma, Bekso-Zhol, Bekitai located 150-400 meters far from the project

¹ Traffic counts carried out by MoTC in 2014, as part of the "RAMS" project financed by World Bank

road. The only access to the core road network of the residents of those villages is this road.

The final section between Km 95 and 129.50 is located in mountainous terrain, without any settlements or human activity. This road section has steep slopes and sharp bends, with the peak altitude above 3300 m at the tunnel gates, which is at Km 129.5 and the end of the contract.

3.1. Physical Environment

The project road section is located in the mostly flat-lying alluvial-proluvial Chui intermountain valley, at the foot of the alpine region. The road Kara-Balta - Suusamyr is oriented in longitudinal direction. The project road sections slopes steadily toward the north starting at 3,300 m at the entrance to the Suusamyr Tunnel and ending at 800 m above sea-level in Kara-Balta.

The project is located within a High Risk Seismic Zone (9-point) and coupled with high soil erodability steep slopes and large cuts between Km 97 and 129 are a constant environmental concern related landslides and earthquake induced slope slips.

Annual precipitation along the project section is about 450 mm, with 60 days of winter events (snow fall), in the mountainous area of the project.²

3.2. Ecological Environment

The project is located in a semi-arid zone, with a long cold season. Frosts in the mountain section start as early as October and occur till late May. Near Kara-Balta, in the Chuy River valley, the winter is shorter, and lasts between December and April.

Land use within the area of influence of the Kara-Balta-Suusamyr road section is mainly agricultural in its first flat section. Cultivated crops near Kara-Balta are mainly wheat, feed and technical crops, different kinds of vegetables like potatoes, peppers, carrots, water melons and egg plants and fruit plantations like apple trees and apricots.

In the mountainous section, human activity is limited to breeding with herds of horses and sheep. The landscape changes to steppe and the soil is covered with grasses and low shrubs such as saxaul. Chiy, a common grass with whitish, cane-like reeds, is also common.

The PBC road corridor (Kara-Balta to Suusamyr) does not interfere with any waterways, wetlands or sensitive areas.

<u>Sensitive Areas</u>- As stated earlier the REA, the project road section does not pass over, through or beside any designated sensitive ecological areas. The existing road passes through Sosnovka, a village of around 5000 people. Besides there are such villages as Kairma, Bekso-Zhol, Bekitai located 150-400 meters far from the project road. Since the road is not expected to generate new traffic ,new safety measures other than better enforcement of speed limits and provision of crossing areas, are not expected to be applied. Through the village speed limits are posted as 40 kph, which will be enforced once the road is repaired.

² Information has been taken from the Climate Change Adaptation Report of the Consultant submitted to IPIG on 31.07.2015.

<u>The Kara-Balta River-</u> Between Kara-Balta Town, through Sosnokova and on to the boundary of the project, the existing road crosses the Kara-Balta River 22 times These crossings are all bridges. Kyrgyz Republic Decree No. 561 (7/09/2009) "*On fisheries development and use of natural and artificial water bodies in the Kyrgyz Republic*" classifies the Kara-Balta River as a fishery water body. In other words the river has native fishes and is a recreational fishing water, most likey further upstream beyond the project boundary, where it runs through a relatively flat area. This category of river is given a level of protection that includes no aggregate mining, and no construction of obstructions, dams, or installation of water conveyances that prevent fish movement³.

The Kara-Balta River should therefore remain off limits for any work, other than erosion protection to limit sediment flow into the river.

Since roadside ditches will be repaired, diversion of runoff water to grassed or field areas before emptying into the river would help to improve water quality and fish habitat. This will however be difficult since the drainage from the road will not be modified, as no new culvert crossing will be placed, and working in the area can lead to exposed earth and more sedimentation and erosion.

3.3. Social Environment

The Project road section starts at the exit to Kara-Balta, the main market town and business center for the rayon (provincial) centre. It then runs through mainly open fields, passing the settlement of Sosnovka at km 86. The next village is located on the other side of tunnel, about 40 km after the end of the project, in the Suusamyr valley.

The road plays an important role in the transport system of Kyrgyzstan, being the only all-year open road connecting the northern part of the country, where the capital capital Bishkek is located, to the South and the country's second largest town of Osh. Therefore, good maintenance and operation of the road section, to allow free flowing traffic in all seasons is critical to the political and economic life of KR.

Much of the traffic along the road is long-distance transport, and the road is used by local villagers who live on the southern side of tunnel, outside the project area. These resident do however depend in the highway to get their products to markets in Kara-Balta and Bishkek.

4. Scope of Work

The road is presently maintained by the MoTR's maintenance unit in charge of that road section. This work will continue without appreciable changes, except for the improvement in regularity and quality of maintenance.

The scope of PBMC work is to maintain the road over 3 years, with implementation of the required routine and periodic maintenance works, unchanged from the past. The level of service that the road has to provide during the contract period is defined in the contract in terms of quality of the carriageway (cleanness of the carriageway, number of potholes, cracks, rutting) and road assets (presence of road marking and signalization, etc.). The quality of the maintenance activity will be monitored by the

³ Although not verified, much of the sewage from Kara-Balta and Sosnokova likely ends up in the Kara-Balta River.

Construction Supervision Consultant (CSC), with monthly payments tied to the quality of the maintenance as defined during the monthly inspections.

During the three years, the physical maintenance works on the whole section will be:

- Routine Repair of Pavements (pothole patching, crack sealing, cleaning)
- Cleaning and repair/replacement of signs and road safety furniture
- Cleaning and repair of culverts and grading and levelling of earth ditches to ensure the run-off water flow without obstruction.
- small concrete repairs to manholes and pipes in case of deterioration
- Vegetation control limited to grass cutting (mainly in the flat area), along the shoulders, but no herbicides will be used.
- Slopes stabilization (cuts and embankments) and removal of loose material
- Cleaning and small repairs to structures
- Road Surface cleaning during winter season, including spreading of sand and limited quantities of salt

All of these activities are currently carried out by the territorial subdivisions of the Ministry of Transport and Roads through the traditional maintenance arrangements, but will be contracted to a private contractor for the three years.

4.1 Volume of the main construction work

Table 1 Volume of the main construction work

Paving works

Nº	Description of item	UoM	Quantity	Completed in 2018
1	Milling of existing asphalt layers (5+8 cm depth)	m2	68000	64000
2	Scarifying of base + compaction	m2	64000	64000
3	Excavation for drainage channels and pipes	m3	250	0
4	Replacement of pipelines / culverts + backfilling	m	54	12
5	Reconstruction/repair of head walls of drainage cannel	U	12	0
6	Repair of concrete for pipes	m3	100	0
7	Repair of Manholes	U	3	0
8	Creation of Earth ditches	m	3000	0
9	Reprofiling of earth ditches	m	3000	0
10	Repair exterior drainage	m	200	0
11	Reconstruction/leveling of benches on the surface of concrete + shoulders	m 2	16000	16000

Type 1. Reconstruction (8 km)

12	Local reconstruction of Capping / Subbase	m 3	0	
13	Asphalt base 8 cm	m 2	64000	64000
14	Asphalt surface 5 cm	m 2	68000	64000
	Type 2. Resurfacin	g (9 km)		· · · ·
1	Milling of existing asphalt surface (5cm)	m2	81000	81000
2	Reprofiling of earth ditches	m	18000	18000
3	Reconstruction / leveling of benches on the surface of concrete + shoulders	m3	18000	
4	Asphalt Surface 5 cm	m2	81000	81000
5	Concrete Parapet	U	546	315
	Civil engineering	works		
1	Gabion wall km 89.9	m3	375	0
	Road signs	6		
1	Standard sign, triangle a=90cm	unit	20	20
2	Standard sign, circle and stop a=60cm	unit	30	
3	Standard sign, rectangle 50*50 or 60*90	unit	30	20
4	Directional signs, rectangles	unit	6	12
5	Additional tables	unit	8	
6	Sign post	unit	40	
7	Guidance Post	unit	920	321
	Road markin	gs		
1	Thermoplastic white marking with reflective beads, standard width, full or broken	m2	24120	6500
2	Cross or special markings	m2	6	6

In the course of the work, Contractor and the Consulting Company "Eptisa" found that the contract volumes for the rehabilitation of the 8 km long section and the replacement of the asphalt surface with a total length of 9 km, do not correspond to the actual volumes. The discrepancy in the volumes is upward, due to the greater actual width of the carriageway (road pavement). Thus, according to the detailed design of the rehabilitation of 121-129 km section, and as-built drawings of the sections with construction of asphalt concrete pavement, the total volume to be

adjusted due to the difference in width was 18454 m2 - for the construction of the asphalt base with a thickness of 8 cm, and 25 807 m2 - for the construction of the asphalt surface 5 cm thick.

Based on the request of the road asset holder - the State Directorate of the Bishkek-Osh road of the Ministry of Transport and Roads of the Kyrgyz Republic - to replace the road surface at 81 km of the Bishkek-Osh road, Contractor carried out additional work on replacement of the asphalt base with a thickness of 8 cm in the amount of 832.7 m2 and asphalt surface with a thickness of 5 cm in the amount of 3219.9 m2 in the requested site.

Table 2 Additional work in 2019

	Variation Order 1					
No.	Description	UoM	Quantity			
2.1	Milling of existing asphalt layers (5+8 cm depth)	m²	21 673,96			
2.2	Scarifaying of base + compaction	m²	18 453,50			
2.13 Asphalt base 8 cm		m²	19 286,22			
2.14 Asphalt surface 5 cm		m²	21 673,96			
2.15 Milling of existing asphalt layers (5+8 cm depth)			7 353,00			
2.19	Asphalt surface (5cm)	m²	7 353,00			

4.2 List of Machinery and equipment

Table 3 List of machinery and equipment

				Fuel
No Name		Mark	Machinery	consumpt
1 1 -	Traffic	Walk	number	ion per
				1km. h.
1	Auto loader	XCMG 955	3689TRSB	23
2	Auto loader	XCMG 931	3690TRSB	20
4	Excavator	HUNDAY 225	1863TRSB	31
	Roller	AMMANN AV-115	3680TRSB	21
5	Roller	DYNAPAC-122	1288TRPB	10
6	Roller	AMMANN AV-70	3683TRSB	17
7	Roller	DYNAPAC-142	1892KRT	15
8	Vibratory roller	YTORM-186	1736KRT	16
	Roller	HAMM-70	1888KRT	18
	Single Drum pneumatic		01KG219CA	13
	tired roller	HAMM DV-85	011(02130/(10
9	Pneumatic tired roller	LTP 1016	9483TRKR	18
10	Pneumatic tired roller	HAMM CR-18	3681TRSB	18
11	Asphalt paving machine	VOLVO 8820	3682TRSB	
12	Asphalt paving machine	TITAN 7820	1889KRT	
13	Loader-excavator	VOLVO BL61B	01KG220CA	18

14	Loader-excavator	WZ3025	1862TRSB	18
	Bitumen paving machine	MERCEDES-BENZ	no	
15	Bitumen paving machine	DFAC	2295BC	
	Milling machine	BOOMAG 1300	1289TRPB	30
16	Milling machine	WIRTGEN 1000	1890KRT	18
17	Auto loader	Lun-Gung	3665TRSB	13
18	Bulldozer	T165-2	9479TRKR	
19	Broom	BELARUS 320	3684TRSB	
20	Motor grader	VOLVO G946	3679TRSB	18
21	Excavator /borrow-pit	DOOSAN-DX300	1864TRSB	
22	Auto loader /borrow-pit	YTO ZL-50F	1891KRT	13
22	Auto loader	VOLVO	399TRBB	
23	Motor truck	YTO	01KG115CA	
24	Motor truck	LING LONG	01KG114CA	13
25	Roller	AMMAN 122	no	15
26	Auto loader		no	10
27	Motor grader	DZ143	no	18
28	Mechanically driven drill	HYDX-5A	1286TRDB	

4.3. Work Details

Of the seven maintenance activities the following are defined in more detail.

Cleaning and Repair of Drainage Structure- There are a total of 69 culverts along the project road section facilitating road runoff as well as drainage from one side of the road downstream to another. Those structures have no flow during the summer season where repairs can be made without affecting the seasonal flows. Culverts are precast concrete and will be cleaned manually. Small concrete repair works may be needed at the outlets (in case of scour) or inside the pipes (at the joints between culvert sections). Repairs are expected to take up small volumes of materials for each structure (about 20-50 kg of concrete), mixed by hand on in a small concrete mixer, and placed and finished manually. All ditches are earth ditches, and works consist in removal of dirt and debris and eventually grading to ensure a smooth water flow. Without this maintenance the culverts will likely clog leading to flooding, road overtopping, erosion and potentially traffic delays. Therefore this activity has a net positive impact.

Vegetation Control-In the flat sections between km 61 and 85 (between Kara-Balta and Sosnovka) the road is located on a small embankment, about 0.5-1m high, next to agricultural land. The shoulders are unpaved, and the berms and slopes are grassed with natural vegetation. Due to the climate and type of mountain flora, the vegetation usually does not growing above a height of 30 cm, which does not require any intervention. In places, were the grass exceeds such height, the grass will be cut manually, by the contractors or the owner of the adjacent fields. That vegetation is usually used as livestock fodder. No herbicides will be used.

Slope Stabilization (Cuts and Embankments) Removal of Loose Materials-The highway section between km 104 and km 129.5 has increasingly large cut areas. These are areas with mixed profiles i.e., the road has been built across a hillside such that one side is cut and the other is an embankment. Due to rain (infrequent), unstable

soils, frequent tremors, the cut areas are subject to landslides. Therefore, the work of the contractor will be to locate unstable areas and remove the loose material and to clean the carriageway and rock and earth debris to a designated storage area, where it can be processed and reused. The contractor will then be required to contact authorities who will stabilize the slope.

Cleaning and Small Repairs to Bridges, Culverts and Retaining Walls: There are 26 Bridges, 69 Culverts and 5500 m of existing retaining walls along the 68.5 km project road. The bridges cross the Kara-Balta River itself, while the culverts are drainage structures directing surface runoff during the rainy season and from snow melt, into the Kara-Balta River.

<u>Bridge Repairs</u> will involve mostly safety related repairs such as restoration of guardrails after accident or collision. Works in the river beds should be limited to cleaning debris that has fallen into the stream and could lead to blockages, flooding and erosion. Concrete repair works are not in the scope of work of the maintenance contractor, however they may happen occasionally, after emergency situations, e.g., if the structures is damaged during a flash-flood event or vehicle accident.

<u>Retaining Walls-</u> As part of the inspection of the retaining walls any cracks or weaknesses will be reported and repairs undertaken, depending on the severity of the condition.

This work will be completed within the road RoW and no works on bridge decks or piers will be undertaken, and any in-water work will be to clear debris that is hampering proper drainage.

4.1.1. Special Work for Year 1 and 2

During the first two years of the PBMC work the contractor is expected to concentrate on carrying out initial rehabilitation works to bring the following selected road sections up to an acceptable standard. This work will be:

- 1. The rehabilitation of km 108 112, and 2 additional kilometers (exact location to be defined) involving:
 - i. the demolition of existing asphalt layers (5 cm + 8 cm) up to the gravel base, using a backhoe and jackhammer attachment. The excavated material will be broken up and stored at the side of the road within the RoW, then reused as fill for the shoulders. Excess material, if any, will be transported to the adjacent local road and used for local road surface stablization.
 - ii. scarifying (loosening of the top 10 cm) of the road surface, levelling and compacting this layer, in preparation for the placement of a new asphalt layer.
 - iii. placing of a bitumen tack coat and placing of base and surface asphalt layers according to the materials specifications.
 - iv. reinstatement of shoulders using the excavated material, repairing ditches, painting road traffic lines, and erecting traffic signs. Traffic signs in good condition are to be reused where possible. Signs in poor condition will be disassembled and transported to an agreed dump site or given away as scrap metal.

- 2. Basic Road Repair from km 61-70 and km 80-90, and 2 additional kilometres (exact location to be defined), involving:
 - I. patching of existing potholes using chipped excavated materials and waterproofing via bitumen emulsion; and,
 - II. reinstatement of shoulders using the excavated material, repairing ditches, painting white lines, erecting traffic signs. Traffic signs are to be reused where possible (in good condition). Signs in poor condition are dismantled and transported to an agreed dump site or given away as scrap metal.

4.4. Application of Better Environmental Safeguards

With the implementation of the PBMC contract, the works will be contracted to a private contractor, not the government unit, and who will be paid on the basis of acceptable performance. Hopefully the quality and environmental sensitivity of the work will improve, while the physical tasks will remain the same. Unlike the current practice, the EMP prepared will be part of the works contract, thus improving contractor's environmental sensitivity, avoiding possible negative impacts.

5.0. The Screening Checklist

An environmental screening checklist was prepared to guide the development of an CEMWP, based on field visits. According to KR law (N°60 of 13/02/2015): no formal environmental assessment of any kind is needed.

Table 4 Screening Checklist

		Vaa	No	Coverity	Demerke
JUKEL	LIVING QUESTIUNS	res	INO	Severity	
A. Pro	ect Fre-Construction and Signting			ü	
				<u> </u>	
				na /e	
				siv	
				nar es:	
				L I N	
A 4 - 1 -	the project consider d-fired 1. (1)			ē —	
A-1: IS	The project corridor as defined by the				
Road	Row and the boundary specifications				
within	2 km of any of the following				
enviro	nmentally sensitive areas?				
1.	cultural heritage site		Х		The road is located in open field. No
					cultural heritage has been registered by
					Kyrgyz authorities in the project area.
2.	buffer zone of a protected area		Х		The landscape either side of the road is
3.	significant wetland providing important		Х		either agricultural land (fields with cereals,
	habitat				feed or vegetables) or steppe, with limited
1	old-growth forest		¥		vegetation, grass and shrubs.
- -	one growth total				4
5.	special area for protecting blodiversity		^		
A-2: Is	the Project area		L		
6.	in densely Populated district(s)?		X		
7.	in potential Conflicts with other		Х		
	Development Activities				
8	inside or very close to boundary of a tribal		x	1	The is only one settlement with < 5000
0.	or indigenous people area				inhabitants without indigenous people on
	or margenous people area				the project road
A_2 · \A	III Bridge Rehabilitation work lead to:				No Bridge Rebabilitation Works
A-3. W	loss of agricultural lands		v		NO DHUYE REHADIII.aliOH WORS
9.			A V		
10.	deterioration of local environmental		X		
	conditions				
11.	require temporary crossings thus		X		
	degrading land in vicinity of crossings				
A-4: W	/ill new culverts need to be installed or		X	1	No New Culverts Expected
fully re	eplaced.				
B. Pro	iect Construction and Operating Periods		1	1	
B-1 · W	(ill a project lead to:	1	ł		
	Construction Period				
10	encroachment on historical/aultural		Y	+	
12.			^		
L	areas?				
13.	disfiguration of landscape by road		X		
	embankments, cuts, fills and quarries?				
14.	encroachment on precious ecology (e.g.		Х		
	sensitive or protected areas?				
15	alteration of surface water bydrology of	x	1	1	May occur marginally in case of cleaning
10.	waterwaye crossed by reade resulting in			'	of stream under bridge crossings flushing
	waterways crossed by roads, resulting in				of existing culverts
	increased sediment in streams/canals				
	attected by increased soil erosion at				
	construction sites?				
16.	pollutant discharges into streams,	Х		1	May occur marginally or incidentally
	including oil and fuel wastes, plus spilled				during surface dressing works. During
	cargo as well as construction materials				surface dressing, the bitumen emulsion
	spilled into the waterway during				(water mixed with bitumen) is applied to
	construction?				the carriageway using a hand-held
	CONSTRUCTION ?				sprayer and emulsion is stored in a
					cistern. The emulsion is sticking to the
					carriageway, but in case it is applied in too
					high concentration, the excess can run-off
					to the ditches. The works control should
					ensure appropriate spreading rate of the
					bitumen emulsion, as well as good

					condition of the emulsion tank to avoid spillage or leakage, as specified in the
17.	deterioration of environmental quality (incl. surface water quality) on the territory adjacent to a construction camp – household wastes, storage platforms for chemicals used in construction?		X		technical specifications of the contract. The existing depot in Sosnovka should be used and upgraded. No "construction camp" required. The depot shall consist indicatively of office facilities (100m ²), open parking for vehicles and plant (300m ²), closed stores (50m ²) and garage (50m ²) and a storage platform for sand (200m ² for winter maintenance). According to the specifications of the contract, the contractor shall conclude a agreement for solid waste collection and sanitation disposal. Storage of fuel, oils, paint and bituminous products shall be kept to a minimum and be located in the separate covered store room with waterproof flooring.
18.	increased local air pollution due to rock crushing, crushing, cutting and filling work, and volatile chemicals discharged into the air from asphalt production?		X		Only marginal asphalt works planned using asphalt produced in registered asphalt plant, away from the site.
19.	noise and vibration due to ANY construction works?	x		1	Noise may occur marginally for truck transport (winter maintenance) and during rehabilitation works (removal of asphalt using digger and saw cuts).There is no use of milling machine (not available in this area). No vibration is expected.
20.	dislocation or involuntary resettlement of		X		No resettlement shall be required
21.	other social concerns relating to inconveniences of living in project corridor during construction and operating period		x		The only settlement passed by the road is Sosnovka village. In the section crossing the village, only maintenance works on the carriageway will be performed, there are no structures and no rehabilitation / surface dressing works located there.
22.	hazardous vehicle movement conditions on the sections where repair works are undergoing on the existing road?		x		Maintenance traffic on the road is minimal compared to existing traffic and integrated into the main flow. Where maintenance vehicles stop for work, appropriate signalisation shall be put in place
23.	poor sanitation and solid waste disposal in construction area and work sites, and possible transmission of communicable diseases from workers to local populations, or development of insect- borne diseases?		X		The contractors depots will be inspected and brought into compliance with KR and ILO standards. Contracts shall be concluded by the maintenance contractor for disposal of all solid waste and sanitation. None of the road occurs in areas where there is standing water or where the climate allows insects such as malaria and dengue fever mosquitoes to exist
	Operating Period				
24.	increased risk of accidents associated with increased traffic volume leading to greater no. of spills of toxic and Haz. Materials and loss of life?		X		Maintenance traffic on the road is minimal compared to existing traffic and integrated into the main flow. No additional traffic flow is generated by the road maintenance.
25.	increased noise and air pollution resulting from traffic volume increases?		X		Traffic volume along the road increases steadily, at the average rate of traffic increase in the KR, about 5% annually. The traffic increase is generated by the economic growth of KR, independently of the project, no additional capacity is created.

26. significant increase in risks of environmental damages due to the need for large number of new bridges and other water crossings?		X		No new bridges and culverts are created.
Score Total	3	25	3	
Additional Comments	The maint Activi differs	project enance ties ren S	consists in contracting nain the same	n replacing the current arrangement for g with performance-based maintenance. e, but the approval and payment mechanism
Environmental Assessment to be Undertaken	Categ	gory C		

Additional Questions:

Legislative and Enforcement Capacity (1= least; 6=best)	1	2	3	4	5	6
Does the country have specific environmental assessment legislation, including specific instructions for environmental management plans?					X	
Does the country have supporting environmental standards and enforcement regulations/decrees?				Х		
Is there the technical capacity to effectively implement the legal instruments?				Х		
Is there a well established history of enforcement			Х			
Summary Comment:						

Unlike large construction projects, there has been little or no environmental monitoring for maintenance activities, particularly when routine maintenance is involved. The EMP does exist in the legislation of the KR, but capacity in the field for environmental monitoring has to be strengthened. A minimum ½ day workshop on environmentally acceptable construction practices focusing on the work items discussed in more detail above- both for maintenance and rehabilitation, for both the contractor and the CSC team will be planned prior to the start of the works.

Climate The foll They ar and disa	e Change and Disaster Risk Questions owing questions are not for environmental categorization. e included in this checklist to help identify potential climate aster risks.	Yes	Νο	Remarks
•	Is the Project area subject to hazards such as earthquakes, floods, landslides, tropical cyclone winds, storm surges, tsunami or volcanic eruptions and climate changes ?	х		The project is partly located in steep mountains, where landslides occur regularly
•	Could changes in temperature, precipitation, or extreme events patterns over the Project lifespan affect technical or financial sustainability (e.g., changes in rainfall patterns disrupt reliability of water supply; sea level rise creates salinity intrusion into proposed water supply source)?		x	Landslides in mountainous terrain occur and are cleaned as part of maintenance, without road disruptions
•	Are there any demographic or socio-economic aspects of the Project area that are already vulnerable (e.g., high incidence of marginalized populations, rural-urban migrants, illegal settlements, ethnic minorities, women or children)?		X	
•	Could the Project potentially increase the climate or disaster vulnerability of the surrounding area (e.g., by using water from a vulnerable source that is relied upon by many user groups, or encouraging settlement in earthquake zones)?		X	Independently of the maintenance project, but as part of regional climate change (see Consultant's climate change report for Bishkek- Kara-Balta), the number of extreme events (heavy rains) is increasing in the project area, with additional risk of landslides. The contractor shall have to make additional efforts to maintain the road open to the general public at all times and dealing with emergency situations.

Conclusions: The project including only maintenance activities should not be affected by climate change, therefore no action are needed.		

Figure 1 Photos of the project area



6.0. The Construction Environmental Management Work Plan (CEMWP)

The maintenance contract will consist of many small task requiring the use of lubricants, and small quantities of hazardous substances such as bitumen and fuels for construction vehicles, and under varying climatic conditions. While there is little chance that negative impacts will result from the maintenance work, a basic Construction Environmental Management Work Plan has been prepared, defining actions/impacts, mitigative measures and monitoring tasks that the contractor and CSC will need to implement during the 3 years.

This Construction Environmental Management Work Plan (hereinafter CEMWP) is designed to exclude and mitigate the impact on the environment during the work under the "CAREC Corridor 3 Bishkek – Osh Road Rehabilitation Project, Performance Based Management Contract; Kara-Balta – Suusamyr (68,5 km)". The impact of the project, presumably, will be insignificant, exclusively local and will arise only during construction. This CEMWP has been prepared and is an environmental work plan for contractor. It indicates the measures taken by contractor to prevent or minimize the negative impact of construction work, as well as the presence of contractor and workers in the physical, ecological and social environment within the project impact corridor.

CEMWP will be dynamic, subject to updating and supplementation as necessary, according to the results of additional baseline surveys, contractor's progress indicators and monitoring results. IPIG MoTR will monitor and quantify the progress of CEMWP implementation. Therefore, during the construction phase, Contractor will submit monthly reports to Construction Supervision Consultant (CSC) on compliance with mitigation measures and other corrective actions. CSC will prepare and, within 1 month after the reporting period, submit to MoTR semi-annual reports on the results of monitoring and implementation of protective measures. MoTR will then forward them to ADB and publish on ADB and MoTR websites. All changes will be discussed and agreed with ADB.

It is hoped that the actions defined in the CEMWP (Table 5), which can be used as a code of environmental practices, and will be adopted permanently by whomever continues the road maintenance after the this PBMC contract is over.

6.1. Technical/Legislative Capacity and Enforcement

While all legal instruments necessary to regulate and enforce environmental safeguards relate to road maintenance are in place both at the national and local levels, they have not been enforced as maintenance was always carried out by Ministry's own staff. One government agency does does not enforce requirements in another agency!

The CEMWP will become a legally binding part of the PBMC, making enforcement of environmental safeguard requirements easier. As defined by ADB, and using the CEMWP to prepare a compliance-monitoring checklist, an independent specialist will complete a semi annual due diligence audit. This audit report will be submitted to the Project Management Unit for submission to ADB.

Using the CEMWP's monitoring table and simply replacing the last 2-3 columns with headings such as 'outputs identified' and 'effectiveness of actions', a compliance monitoring checklist matching the CEMWP and its numbering can be easily prepared.

6.2. Implementation Arrangements and Timetable

The CEMWP is organized into two sections (cross referenced tables), one for mitigation and the second for monitoring. Within that division the impacts, mitigative measures and monitoring actions split into effects or actions likely to occur during the pre-implementation, implementation, and post-implementation periods⁴.

Pre-Implementation and Post-implementation mitigative and monitoring actions will be implemented by MoTR, its Investment Projects Implementation Group (IPIG) and the CSC. During the implementation period, i.e. when the contractor is maintaining the road, most mitigative measures and some of the monitoring tasks will be implemented by the contractor and monitoring functions by the IPIG but carried out by the CSC. Who does what and when has also been defined in the CEMWP (Table 5).

While IPIG of MoTR will have oversight and management decision responsibility for the project, the CSC will manage the contract and contractor, making sure that the EMP is implemented and will also be completing the mandatory semi-annual monitoring reports.

6.3. Mitigation and Monitoring Details

6.3.1. Pre- implementation Period Actions

For the pre-implementation period the CEMWP lists six environmental issues that if addressed effectively will result in no or far fewer impacts during the implementation period.

6.3.2. Implementation Period Actions

While the actual maintenance tasks such as painting lines on the road or replacing bridge guardrails will generate few negative impacts, it is how the work is carried out by the contractor that could lead to problems. It is for this reason that the implementation section of the CEMWP focuses on contractor work methods and proper handling and storage of materials and prompt clean up after work has been completed or while unwanted conditions, such as excessive dust have been created. Twenty actions, mostly related to contractor good housekeeping practices are defined in detail. The implementation period mitigative and monitoring also address proper contractor liquid and solid waste management, including storage of materials and and surface runoff controls.

Construction materials required by the contractor, such as asphalt, bitumen and aggregate, cement and possibly concrete will all be obtained from existing licensed operators, thus no action will be needed as these sources are operating within the law. Contractors will be required to provide confirmation that materils suppliers are licensed and operating legally.

⁴ In standard infrastructure project these three divisions are usually pre-construction, construction and operating periods, but since this work involves only routine maintenance a different set of terms was used.

6.3.3 Post-Implementation Period Actions

The post implementation actions deal with checking that implementation period mitigative and monitoring measures were implemented in a credible and timely manner. This CEMWP has three such activities, focusing on reporting, checking contractor work clean up and ensuring the improvements to environmental conditions, such as better dust control and roadside vegetation management are carried over into the post-implementation period and are adopted as regular operating functions of the road maintenance units.

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
1	PRE-IMPLEMENT PERIOD	FATION					
1.1	Preservation of Top Soil	Topsoil washed away or blown away	MoTR/IPIG will prepare an earthworks checklist that defines for the contractor, limits to the excavation during the road rehabilitation. Instructions for topsoil management will also be defined, including the removal and storage of all topsoil to be used in landscaping, once the road work is completed. Use of soil from private land will be minimized and only after consultation and recorded agreement with landowners on compensation	During Planning phase, in parallel with the preparation phase of the contractors	At any locations where borrow pits, quarries will be operated.	CSC (since CSC has been appointed at the moment of preparation of this document)	MOTR
1.2	Disturbance to Archaeological and Cultural Sites	Arch. or cult, site damaged	No cultural or archaeological sites have been identified in the area within the road RoW or near the road and thus no mitigation measures are required.				
1.3	Disturbance of environmental sensitive areas, as wetland, old- growth forest or areas protected for biodiversity	ESA's , biodiversity areas damaged	No environmentally sensitive sites have been identified within the 100m–wide RoW of the road (no wetland, no forest, no special biodiversity hotspot) or on either side of the boundary, and thus no mitigation measures are required.				
1.4	Materials Haul Routes use	Vehicle traffic causes pollution and safety issues	Construction vehicles hauling materials along urban roads and anywhere where there are roadside residence will be limited and the MoTR will establish a route plan to minimize this disruption	During contractor mobilization, i.e. before contractor starts work in the field	On all identified haul routes	CSC (since CSC has been appointed at the moment of preparation	MOTR

Table 5 Construction Environmental Management Work Plan: Environmental Mitigation Table (EMiT)

N°	Environment Issue	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen- ter	Supervisor
						of this document)	
1.5	Consultation Plan with affected roadside landowners	Landowner s not aware of upcoming work and block activity	The work will not result in restricted access from a businesses and residences to the road. Therefore no mitigation measures are required. If the issue occurs during implementation it shall be monitored according to laws and regulations of Kyrgyz Republic	Completed prior to contractor mobilization and provided the contractor as part of the contract documentation	Applied to any location where there is likelihood of delays and temporary access restrictions	CSC jointly with IPIG (since CSC has been appointed at the moment of preparation of this document)	IPIG/MOTR
1.6	Contractor's Occupational and Environmental health and Safety Capacity	Worker OHS issues arise during work	Unfortunately contractors have a very poor record complying with workplace and environmental safety regulations. To address this the contract will include the requirement for an H&S Officer and require the contractor to define a Occupational and Environmental Health and Safety standard for all work, including work camp operation, management of cement dust, and use of Personal Safety Equipment.	Standard to be prepared by the Consulting Engineer, IPIG and the contractor prior to start of work. The standard will be based on KR regulations and of they are not available ILO standards	The standards will be applied to all work undertaken by the contractor or any subcontracto r	Contractor and CSC	IPIG/MOTR
2	IMPLEMENTION	PERIOD					

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
I	13306					lei	
2.1 Dus	st and Air Quality						
2.1.1	Dust Generation: Transportation of Material: A small increase in particulate matter (dust) is expected at the location of rehabilitation works and from vehicles hauling materials to the rehabilitation areas.	Dust pollution	 i. The Contractor will be required to spray water on uncovered sand and gravel layers in dry periods within villages and near houses located close to the road and to cover the trucks used for transport. ii. Dust control at the construction site will be controlled by watering during dry periods and setting strict speed limits of no more than 30kph across the rehabilitation sections. 	Throughout the construction period	Anywhere where there is material moved, earthworks cutting and filling.	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.1.2	Dust Generation: Quarry and Batching Plant Operation and removal and placement of cut and fill materials respectively	Dust pollution	 i. The works do not include large cement and concrete works and shall be carried out without a batching plant. Therefore no mitigation is required. ii. Dust during manual batching for small concrete structure shall be minimized by slow and controlled mixing of the cement with aggregate to produce concrete. iii. dust during material extraction and movement shall be controlled through transport in batched trucks and watering during dry period. 	Throughout the construction period	Anywhere where there is material moved, earthworks cutting and filling.	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.2	Increase in air pollution from vehicular and machinery exhaust	Air Qual. degradation	Emissions will be minimized by: i. ensuring that the contractor's fleet of vehicles are properly maintained according to manufacturer's specifications;	During Construction	Construction Site	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
			 ii. use of appropriate octane fuel and haul loads within specified limits. iii. Vehicle idling time limits to no more than 10 minutes, iv. Equipment such as the diesel generator will be included in the emission control program and will be and regularly tuned to prevent excessive temporary pollution. 			lei	
2.3	Solid waste management at the construction site	Garbage litter	No open incineration of solid waste (garbage) and construction materials shall be permitted on site. All plastics , paper and useable wood will be recycled. Wood scraps can be burned.	During Construction	Construction Site	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.4	Surface and						
Ground	dwater Quality						
2.4.1	Contamination of Water Resources (Surface& Groundwater) Surface water can be polluted by entering of bitumen and other chemicals used in rehabilitation works. Groundwater contamination from surface runoff leaking into roadside wells.	Surface water quality degradation	 i. Fuel and oil storage areas should be at least 500m away from watercourses and repair yards to be equipped with an impervious platform, with interceptor traps so that any fuel leakage is retained within the site. ii. All fuel storage sites must be checked daily for leaks and held in an impervious site where spilled/leaking material can be collected. iii. Wash down water from machinery repair areas to be directed into this system that retains the oil and grease. Refueling not be permitted within or adjacent to watercourses. Surface water channels crossed by the road will be monitored upstream and downstream of the road before, during and after the work has been completed on that crossing. iv. Water channels have to be diverted properly, protection arrangements should be provided at each culvert / water crossing. v. Small concrete works at bridges and culverts 	Throughout the construction period	All construction sites	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
	ISSUe		shall be done by mixing in small mixing machine or by hand, by protecting the area of mixing with impermeable cloth, and all remaining unused concrete shall be evacuated to an agreed dump or used on local roads if need is expressed by local residents			ter	
2.4.2	Interruption / Contamination of Water channels: Movement/drain age of surface water interrupted due to improper construction activities, inadequate diversions and notifications.	Surface water quality degradation	 i. Contractor should provide the adequate sized diversion, so that there shall be no disturbance to water flows of canal /water course. ii. Protection mechanism should be provided to avoid contamination. iii. The land used for the temporary diversion and the water course shall be restored as far as possible to its initial state once the work has been completed 	Construction period	Culverts and bridges	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.5 Fa	una & Flora						
2.5.1	Loss of Vegetation and trees	Terrestrial habitat loss	The project does not include any requirement for the cutting of mature trees, therefore no mitigative measures are required. If there is unforeseen cutting required, they shall be monitored according to according to the Law of KR "General technical rules and regulations for environmental safety in the Kyrgyz Republic", #151, Clause 12 dtd. 08.05.2009. and the Law of KR "On Protection and Use of Flora", #53 dtd. 20.06.2001.	Design and implementation planning for Kara-balta - Suusamyr road	At any locations where mature trees will be cut down.	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
	Issue					ter	
2.5.2	Over Used Local	Excessive	Labor for the project will be hired exclusively	Construction	Contractor's	Contractor	IPIG and
	natural	use	locally, so there will be no additional impact on	period	depots and	and the	Contract
	resources:	pressure on	natural and social resources and services.		work areas	project's	Supervision
	Project Labor	land				CSC and	Consultant
	force can impose	resources				EHS officer	
	a burden on,						
	water resource,						
	wildlife, fuel						
	wood, and						
	sanitation						
	system, by						
	resources						
	indiscriminately						
26 5	Spoil and Solid						
Waste							
2.6.1	Disposal of	Contamin.	Demolished asphalt may be re-used in the soft	Durina	All	Contractor	IPIG and
	demolished	from waste	shoulders or as fill for other parts of the	Construction	Construction	and the	Contract
	asphalt layers		rehabilitation works. It may also be used as back-		Sites	project's	Supervision
	and base		fill for borrow pits and then over-lain with top soil.			csc	Consultant
	materials of the		Asphalt can be spread on adjacent roads as				
	existing road		surface or pothole fill material and compacted.				
2.6.2	Unused	Contamin.	i. The contractor will identify dumping	During	All	Contractor	IPIG and
	construction	from waste	locations for construction debris and non-	Construction	Construction	and the	Contract
	material (sand,		hazardous solid waste with DEP9/Bishkek-		Sites	project's	Supervision
	crush), empty		Osh and the Supervision Consultant. If			CSC	Consultant
	drums, concrete		required, will get approval from local				
	waste and waste		authorities, territorial environmental				
	from work		divisions.				
	camps.		ii. The contractor shall identify any hazardous				
			waste as part of its health and safety plan				
			and dispose of the material through an	1			

N°	Environment Issue	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen- ter	Supervisor
			 approved waste management contractor. iii. The cost of disposal of hazardous and non- hazardous waste shall be included in the Contractors BOQ. iv. No construction waste disposal or storage area should permit direct drainage of runoff water into the Kara-Balta River, and to that end the drainage water will be directed to either a sump area of grassed surface allowing particulates to fall out before discharge to the river takes place. The Supervision Consultant will review and approve all such drainage works and will require then at any temporary or permanent construction waste disposal sits 				
2.7 Materi	Quarry/Borrow als						
2.7.1	Preservation of Top Soil	erosion	 i. Excavation of earth fill will be limited to an appropriate depth of 20cm. ii. Where deep ditching is carried out, the top half meter layer will be stripped and stockpiled. Height of top soil stockpiling should not exceed 90 cm. iii. The ditch will be filled initially with debris/scrap material from old construction and leveled with stockpiled topsoil later. iv. Where borrow pits cannot be fully rehabilitated, land owners will be compensated as provided in agreements between the land owner and contractor 	During Construction	At any locations where borrow pits, quarries will be operated.	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment Issue	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen- ter	Supervisor
2.7.2	Overloading of trucks, may damage pavement, bridges, and culverts	Pavement degradation	The Contractor will ensure that loaded trucks do not exceed road, bridge and pavement specifications and are checked by weighbridges. The contractor will be required to monitor the transport of material, recording vehicle movements and weights, to be inspected.	Throughout construction period	Construction sites	Contractor, the project CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.7.3	Risk of erosion and destruction of landscape from side borrow operations.	erosion	Side-borrowing along or outside the RoW will not be permitted unless a construction emergency arises, and which will trigger a mandatory consultation with IPIG.			Contractor, CSC	IPIG, CSC
2.8 No	ise and Vibration						
2.8.1	Noise and Vibrations associated with earthworks and haul roads.	Noise pollution	 i. Enforcing a speed limit of 30 kph within 500m of any village. ii. Restricting operating hours through roadside villages and settlements to between hours of 0700 and 1800. iii. Large and noisy machinery operations close to urban areas are restricted to daylight hours, and a schedule agreed to between contractor and local communities. 	During Construction period	Construction areas	Contractor, the CSC and an EHS Inspector	IPIG, Contract Supervision Consultant
2.8.2	Noise and Vibrations associated with compaction of asphalt and unbound materials	Noise pollution	 Application shall be carried out with equipment checked for compliance with the applicable Laws in KR regarding Noise and Vibration at construction sites: SN 2.2.4/2.1.8.562-96 "Noise in working areas, dwelling accommodations, public buildings and on the territory of residential construction". SN 2.2.4/21.8.566-96 "Production vibration. Vibration in accommodations, dwelling and public buildings». Restricting operating hours in villages and settlements to between hours of 0700 and 	During the Construction Period	All construction sites in villages or within 100m of a settlement	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG, Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
	Issue		4000			ter	
			1800.				
2.9 Hea	alth and Safety						
2.9.1	Damage / disturbance to Utilities within RoW	Damage to utilities	There is no relocation of utilities required under the contract, therefore there is no monitoring of eventual disruptions.				
2.9.2	Traffic Disturbance : Loss of access for roadside residents	Noise pollution	Contractor shall provide safe and convenient passage for vehicles and pedestrians to and from side roads and properties connecting the project road/area. In case such work occurs, traffic management arrangement shall be submitted for approval by the Supervision Engineer, after consultation with local people and the traffic police, before the work takes place, and according to local regulations.	Construction Period	Town Crossings	Contractor .CSC and EHS Inspector	IPIG, Contract Supervision Consultant
2.9.3	Health and Safety Concerns: Protecting the workforce and maintaining a safe working environment.	OHS compromis e-ed	 i. Contractor must provide safety vests, hard hats and protective footwear for all workers handling heavy machinery, and working with hazardous materials such as concrete, asphalt, paints, and cleaning agents . ii. Contractor must provide protective masks to machine operators, where dust can be generated, and to anyone working in the area of the machines, with masks of a micron size, capable of capturing dust down to 2 microns. iii. Any works at night should be adequately lit and high visibility clothing worn and contractor should provide basic training on use of protective clothing and equipment. 	Construction period	Contractor's Depots and work areas	Contractor .CSC and EHS Officer	IPIG, Contract Supervision Consultant
2.9.4	Contractor's work areas and depots not	Contaminati of surface and	i. All depots shall be provided with septic sanitation facilities and potable water.ii. Monitoring will be required for the solid waste	Throughout the construction period	Contractor's Depots and work areas	Contractor CSC and EHS	IPIG, Contract Supervision

N°	Environment	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen-	Supervisor
	maintained, no proper waste management, environmental health and safety measures.	groundwate r from contaminat ework area runoff.	disposal at the depot and to ensure that the health and safety plan based on contract specifications is followed. iii. During operation, the surface of the depot used for storage of construction materials shall be protected against run-off and spills of hazardous materials using impermeable protection covering the ground and a system to collect contaminated run-off.			Inspector	Consultant
2.10	Lack of contractor's construction period mitigation completion report	Implementa tion measures not addressed	Contractor will be required to prepare and safeguards implementation at the end of the construction period, discussing very briefly, each construction period EMP item.	Prior to final payment to contractor	NA	Contractor and the project's CSC	IPIG, Contract Supervision Consultant
3	POST-IMPLEME	NTATION lt Yr. 1)					
3.1	Failure to confirm submission of report defined in 2.10 above	No record of mitigative measures implementa tion	The contractor will provide an mitigation and monitoring completion report listing all actions taken in compliance with this EMP items defined and with any other safeguard requirement specified in the contract and submit that to IPIG before the final payment can be released. IPIG will review and approve this report	1 month before the end of the contract period	NA	Contractor and CSC	IPIG/ MoTR
3.2	Environmental Quality Degraded	Stop implementi ng good environmen tal practices	Maintenance contractor or DEP9 will endeavour to keep road dust and snow free and speed limit signs will be maintained. Traffic Police will improve enforcement of limits and conduct spot checks.	Post- Implementation period	All villages & towns (Kara- balta and Sosnovka)	Contractor for maintenanc e and Traffic Police for traffic regulation	IPIG/ MoTR
3.3	Better Roads	Accidents	Appropriate traffic calming and signage will be	Post-	As per	Contractor	IPIG/ MoTR

N°	Environment Issue	Impact	Mitigative Measures	Time Frame	Location	Implemen- ter	Supervisor
	and speeding	and safety	installed for the driver, speed limits shall be	Implementation	design	and Traffic	
		issues	monitored by the traffic police to avoid any	period	_	police	
			accident and subsequent spillage. An emergency				
			service may be provided by the local authorities.				

Note: The three work periods have been labeled as PRE-Implementation, Implementation and POST-Implementation since the work involves road maintenance over a three year implementation period after which the work will continue as standard operating procedures. There is no specific project, rather a large number of repair activities such as bridge rail painting, pothole repairs, road shoulder clearing, culvert repair, etc.

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented by	Supervised by
1	Pre-Implementation	Period Impacts					
1.1	Preservation of Top Soil	MoTR/IPIG will prepare an earthworks checklist that defines for the contractor, limits to the excavation during the road rehabilitation. Instructions for topsoil management will also be defined, including the removal and storage of all topsoil to be used in landscaping, once the road work is completed. Use of soil from private land will be minimized and only after consultation and recorded agreement with landowners on compensation	Monitor checks that topsoil management steps prepared and ready for implementation	During Planning phase, in parallel with the preparation of bid documents	Copy of topsoil protection actions	CSC	IPIG/MOTR
1.2	Disturbance to Archaeological and Cultural Sites	No cultural or archaeological sites have been identified in the area within the road RoW or near the road and thus no mitigation measures are required.					
1.3	Disturbance of environmental sensitive areas, as wetland, old- growth forest or areas protected for biodiversity	No environmentally sensitive sites have been identified within the 100m –wide RoW of the road (no wetland, no forest, no special biodiversity hotspot) or on either side of the boundary, and thus no mitigation measures are required.					

Table 6: Construction Environmental Management Work Plan - Environmental Monitoring Table (EMoT)

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented	Supervised
1.4	Materials Haul Routes	Construction vehicles hauling materials along urban roads and anywhere where there are roadside residence will be limited and the MoTRwill establish a route	Route plan confirmed by IPIG-planners and recorded for use in audit	Prior to contractor mobilization	Written and dated note indicating compliance & inspection	CSC	IPIG/MOTR
1.5	Consultation Plan with affected roadside landowners	plan to minimize this disruption Contractors will be required to avoid access restrictions for roadside residences and businesses, as much as possible. In order to manage this problems, MoTR, working with the contractor ,will establish a protocol for maintaining traffic and access for local residents during construction along any road section, including providing temporary crossing means when shoulders and draining ditches are being repaired or deepened, when asphalt layers are being removed or replaced or when erosion control measures are					
1.6	Contractor's Occupational and Environmental health and Safety Capacity	being built/repaired Unfortunately contractors have a very poor record complying with workplace and environmental safety regulations. To address this the contract will include the requirement for an H&S Officer and require the contractor to define a Occupational and Environmental Health and Safety standard for all work, including work camp operation, management of cement dust, and use of Personal Safety	Review Construction contracts and specifications- to check content for OHS plan content.	Plan to be provided to the Supervision Engineer and IPIG prior to start of work	Written and dated note indicating compliance	CSC	MOTR

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented by	Supervised
		Equipment.					
2	IMPLEMENTION F	PERIOD					
2.1 Dust	and Air Quality						
2.1.1	Dust Generation: Transportation of Material: A small increase in particulate matter (dust) is expected at the location of rehabilitation works and from vehicles hauling materials to the rehabilitation areas.	i. The Contractor will be required to spray water on uncovered sand and gravel layers in dry periods within villages and near houses located close to the road and to cover the trucks used for transport. ii. Dust control at the construction site will be controlled by watering during dry periods and setting strict speed limits of no more than 30kph across the rehabilitation sections.	Travel work areas and check for dust—and if found take immediate action with contractor	Anywhere where there is material moved, earthworks cutting and filling.	Written and dated note indicating compliance or issue and action taken	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
2.1.2	Dust Generation: Quarry and Batching Plant Operation and removal and placement of cut and fill materials respectively	 i. The works do not include large cement and concrete works and shall be carried out without a batching plant. Therefore no mitigation is required. ii. Dust during manual batching for small concrete structure shall be minimized by slow and controlled mixing of the cement with aggregate to produce concrete. iii. dust during material extraction and movement shall be controlled through transport in batched trucks and watering during dry period. 	Travel Quarry and Works site and check for dust—and if found take immediate action with contractor.	Anywhere where Quarry and works are operated.	Written and dated note indicating compliance or issue and action taken	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.2	Increase in air pollution from vehicular and machinery exhaust	 Emissions will be minimized by: v. ensuring that the contractor's fleet of vehicles are properly maintained according to manufacturer's specifications; vi. use of appropriate octane fuel and haul loads within specified limits. vii. Vehicle idling time limits to no more than 10 minutes, tiii. Equipment such as the diesel generator will be included in the emission control program and will be and regularly tuned to prevent excessive temporary pollution. 	Record findings and conduct regular inspections in association with construction supervision	During Construction period	Inspection Note to file for use in contractor's reporting and in audit reports.	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented	Supervised
2.3	Solid waste management at the construction site	No open incineration of solid waste (garbage) and construction materials shall be permitted on site. All plastics , paper and useable wood will be recycled. Wood scraps can be burned.	Record findings and conduct regular inspections in association with construction supervision	During Construction period	Inspection Note to file for use in contractor's reporting and in audit reports.	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.4 Surf	ace and Groundwa	ter Quality					
2.4.1	Contamination of Water Resources (Surface& Groundwater) Surface water can be polluted by entering of bitumen and other chemicals used in rehabilitation works. Groundwater contamination from surface runoff leaking into roadside wells.	 i. Fuel and oil storage areas should be at least 500m away from watercourses and repair yards to be equipped with an impervious platform, with interceptor traps so that any fuel leakage is retained within the site. ii. All fuel storage sites must be checked daily for leaks and held in an impervious site where spilled/leaking material can be collected. iii. Wash down water from machinery repair areas to be directed into this system that retains the oil and grease. Refueling not be permitted within or adjacent to watercourses. Surface water channels crossed by the road will be monitored upstream and downstream of the road before, during and after the work has been completed on that crossing. iv. Water channels have to be 	Regular inspection of work camps, contractors yard, fueling areas , fuel storage	At least monthly throughout the construction period.	Checklist showing the check of fuel and lubricant handling, waste oil management, machinery was down water control, etc. signed and datedfiled. Checklist showing the check for lighting and signage signed and date filled .	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
2.4.2	Interruption / Contamination of Water channels: Movement/draina ge of surface water interrupted due to improper construction activities, inadequate diversions and notifications.	 diverted properly, protection arrangements should be provided at each culvert / water crossing. v. Small concrete works at bridges and culverts shall be done by mixing in small mixing machine or by hand, by protecting the area of mixing with impermeable cloth, and all remaining unused concrete shall be evacuated to an agreed dump or used on local roads if need is expressed by local residents iv. Contractor should provide the adequate sized diversion, so that there shall be no disturbance to water flows of canal /water course. v. Protection mechanism should be provided to avoid contamination. vi. The land used for the temporary diversion and the water course shall be restored as far as possible to its initial state once the work has been completed 	Action Action Inspection of diversion along the road, check signage, lighting any leakage etc at the diversions and rectify through contractor. Ensure contractor has adequately restored temporary work areas.	Construction period	Deliverable	by Contractor under supervision of CSC	by IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.5 Faur	a & Flora						

N°	Environment	Mitigation measures	Monitoring	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
	Issue		Action		Deliverable	by	by
2.5.1	Loss of Vegetation and trees	The project does not include any requirement for the cutting of mature trees, therefore no mitigative measures are required. If there is unforeseen cutting required, this shall be monitored according to according to the following the Law of KR "General technical rules and regulations for environmental safety in the Kyrgyz Republic", #151, Clause 12 dtd. 08.05.2009. and the Law of KR "On Protection and Use of Flora", #53 dtd. 20.06.2001.					
2.5.2	Over Used Local natural resources: Project Labor force can impose a burden on, water resource, wildlife, fuel wood, and sanitation system., by using these resources indiscriminately	Labor for the project will be hired exclusively locally, so there will be no additional impact on natural and social resources and services.	Inspection of work areas and meet with local officials to establish if excessive use of local resources is a concern	Throughout construction period—at least once when work is near or in a community	Meeting note signed and dated	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.6 Spo	il and Solid Waste						
2.6.1	Disposal of demolished asphalt layers and base materials of the existing road	Demolished asphalt may be re- used in the soft shoulders or as fill for other parts of the rehabilitation works. It may also be used as back- fill for borrow pits and then over- lain with top soil. Asphalt can be spread on adjacent roads as	Monitor to check waste handling and disposal procedure of contractor	Throughout construction period	Note to file, signed and dated	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented	Supervised
		surface or pothole fill material and compacted.					Sy
2.6.2	Unused construction material (sand, crush), empty drums, concrete waste and waste from work camps.	 i. The contractor will identify dumping locations for construction debris and non- hazardous solid waste with DEP9/Bishkek-Osh and the Supervision Consultant ii. The contractor shall identify any hazardous waste as part of its health and safety plan and dispose of the material through an approved waste management contractor. <i>iii.</i> The cost of disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste shall be included in the Contractors BOQ. iv. No construction waste disposal or storage area should permit direct drainage of runoff water into the Kara-Balta River, and to that end the drainage water will be directed to either a sump area of grassed surface allowing particulates to fall out before discharge to the river takes place. The Supervision Consultant will review and approve all such drainage works and will require then at any temporary or permanent 	Monitor to check waste handling and disposal procedure of contractor Supervising Consultant to inspect and approve drainage provisoions provided for all temporary and permanent construction waste disposal areas	Throughout construction period	Note to file, signed and dated	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented	Supervised
2.7 Quar 2.7.1	ry/Borrow Material Preservation of Top Soil	 construction waste disposal sits s i. Excavation of earth fill will be limited to an appropriate depth of 20cm. ii. Where deep ditching is carried out, the top half meter layer will be stripped and stockpiled. The height of top soil stockpiling should not exceed 90 cm. iii. The ditch will be filled initially with debris/scrap material from old construction and leveled with stockpiled topsoil later. iv. Where borrow pits cannot be fully rehabilitated, land owners will be compensated as provided in agreements 	i. Check query sites for depth.	During Construction period	Deliverable	by Contractor under supervision of CSC	by IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
		contractor.					
2.7.2	Overloading of trucks, may damage pavement, bridges, and culverts	The Contractor will ensure that loaded trucks do not exceed road, bridge and pavement specifications and are checked by weighbridges. The contractor will be required to monitor the transport of material, recording vehicle movements and weights, to be	Examine weighbridge records and compare to amount of material moved	Throughout construction period	Inspection Notewith findings, dated and signed	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring Deliverable	Implemented by	Supervised by
2.7.3	Risk of erosion and destruction of landscape from side borrow	inspected. Side- borrowing along or outside the RoW will not be permitted unless a construction emergency arises, and which will trigger a	e Inspect all side borrow activities and establish what permission given, and if r d immediate closure and restoration of the site.		if none require		
2.8 Nois	e and Vibration	mandatory consultation with IPIG.	·				
2.8.1	Noise and Vibrations associated with earthworks and haul roads.	 iv. Enforcing a speed limit of 30 kph within 500m of any village. v. Restricting operating hours through roadside villages and settlements to between hours of 0700 and 1800. vi. Large and noisy machinery operations close to urban areas are restricted to daylight hours, and a schedule agreed to between contractor and local communities. 	Using a portable noise meter, monitor works conditions , and inspect if work conducted within permitted time period in urban zones	During Construction period	Inspection Note to file for use in contractor's reporting with eventual noise measurements.	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.8.2	Noise and Vibrations associated with Compaction of asphalt and unbound materials	i. Application shall be carried out with equipment checked for compliance with the Laws of KR regarding noise and vibration on construction sites, as well as the standards defined in this EMP: SN 2.2.4/2.1.8.562-96 "Noise in working areas, dwelling	Using a portable noise meter, monitor works conditions, and inspect if work conducted within permitted time period in urban zones	During Construction period	Monitoring dateset presented in a tabular format	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Mitigation measures	Monitoring	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
	Issue		Action		Deliverable	by	by
		 accommodations, public buildings and on the territory of residential construction". SN 2.2.4/21.8.566-96 "Production vibration. Vibration in accommodations, dwelling and public buildings». i. Restricting operating hours in villages and settlements to between hours of 0700 and 1800. 					
2.9 Heal	th and Safety						
2.9.1	Damage / disturbance to Utilities within RoW	There is no relocation of utilities required under the contract, therefore there is no monitoring of eventual disruptions.					
2.9.2	Traffic Disturbance : Loss of access for roadside residents	Contractor shall provide safe and convenient passage for vehicles and pedestrians to and from side roads and properties connecting the project road/area. In case such work occurs, traffic management arrangement shall be submitted for approval by the Supervision Engineer, after consultation with local people and the traffic police, before the work takes place, and according to local traffic regulations.	i. Inspect construction areas where access is an issue and establish if contractor is managing problem and if local residents are satisfied. ii. Always identify by clear signage according to regulation maintenance activities on the roadway	Throughout construction period	Inspection note with findings, dated and signed	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
2.9.3	Health and Safety Concerns: Protecting the workforce and maintaining a safe working environment.	 i. Contractor must provide safety vests, hard hats and protective footwear for all workers handling heavy machinery, and working with hazardous materials such as concrete, asphalt, paints, and cleaning agents. ii. Contractor must provide protective masks to machine operators, where dust can be generated, and to anyone working in the area of the machines, with masks of a micron size, capable of capturing dust down to 2 microns. iii. Any works at night should be adequately lit and high visibility clothing worn and contractor should provide basic training on use of protective clothing and equipment. 	Action Inspection of construction sites to ensure proper use of OHS gear and contractor enforcement	Throughout construction period	Deliverable Inspection note with findings, dated and signed	by Contractor under supervision of CSC	by IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
2.9.4	Contractor's work areas and depots not maintained, no proper waste management, environmental health and safety measures.	 All depots shall be provided with septic sanitation facilities and potable water. Monitoring will be required for the solid waste disposal at the depot and to ensure that the health and safety plan based on contract specifications is followed. During operation, the surface of the depot used for storage 	Inspect all operations in the depots including worker housing and all waste management procedures.	Throughout the construction period	Inspection note re findings, dated and signed.	Contractor under supervision of CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant

N°	Environment Issue	Mitigation measures	Monitoring Action	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
		of construction materials shall be protected against run-off and spills of hazardous materials using impermeable protection covering the ground and a system to collect contaminated run-off.				by	by
2.10	Lack of contractor's construction period mitigation completion report	Contractor will be required to prepare a safeguards implementation report at the end of the construction period, discussing very briefly, each construction period EMP item, how and when it was implemented and any outcome.	Collect and review report for content and completness	Within 1 month of end of construction period	Checklist indicating that report acceptable and compliant	Contractor with assistance from CSC	IPIG and Contract Supervision Consultant
3	Post-Implementat	ion Period (Default year 1)					
3.1	Failure to confirm submission of report defined in 2.10 above	The contractor will provide an mitigation and monitoring completion report listing all actions taken in compliance with this CEMWP items defined and with any other safeguard requirement specified in the contract and submit that to IPIG before the final payment can be released. IPIG will review and approve this report	Obtain completion report and review for compliance.	1 month before the end of the contract period	Note to file and copy of the completion report	Contractor with assistance from CSC	MoTR
3.2	Environmental Quality improved	The future maintenance contractor or DEP9 will endeavor to keep road dust and snow free and speed limit signs will be maintained. Traffic Police will improve enforcement of limits and conduct spot checks.	MoTR to take necessary action.	Post- Implementation period	Note-to file to indicate status of the maintenance works	Contractor, MoTR, maintenance contractor, and Traffic police	MoTR

N°	Environment	Mitigation measures	Monitoring	Timing	Monitoring	Implemented	Supervised
	Issue		Action		Deliverable	by	by
3.3	Risk of Accident and Iniury	Appropriate traffic calming and signage will be installed for the	MoTR to take necessary	Post- Implementation	Note to file to indicate status	Contractor, MoTR.	MoTR
	reduced	driver, speed limits shall be monitored by the traffic police to avoid any accident and subsequent spillage. An emergency service may be provided by the local authorities.	action.	period	of the maintenance works	maintenance contractor, and Traffic police	

Note: The three work periods have been labeled as PRE-Implementation, Implementation and POST-Implementation since the work involves road maintenance over a three year implementation period after which the work will continue as standard operating procedures. There is no specific project, rather a large number of repair activities such as bridge rail painting, pothole repairs, road shoulder clearing, culvert repair, etc.

7.0 CEMWP Implementation Cost

IPIG

Undertaking the environmental safeguard steps as defined in the "implementation" section of the CEMWP should be "business as usual" activities. In other words, environmentally aware contractors take these precautions as a matter of course, especially as this work is dealing with routine maintenance activities.

That being said, the 21 actions required of the contractor will take additional time and therefore the following estimate is provided.

Period & Participants	Total No. of	General	Report Preparation	Total for
	Months	Implementation	or Review	Period (days)
		Days/month	(days/month)	
Pre Implementation	6	Dayo, monar	(ddyb/monal)	
Contractor		variable	variable	5-7
CSC		3	1	30
IPIG		0.5	0.5	9
Implementation	36			
Contractor		4	1	180
			Semi Annual report	
			Prep/Review;	
			Days/year	
CSC		2	10	102
IPIG		0	4	12
Post-Implementation	4-5			
Contractor		0	NA	5-7
CSC		One time 4 days	One time 7 days	11
IPIG		1	1	10
Grand Total	Total			
	Environment			
	al Safeguard			
	Davs			
Contractor	194-200	1		
020	1/2	1		

Table 7: CEMWP Implementation Cost Estimate (Person Days)

Depending on the performance of the contractor, level of reporting required due to non-compliance, and need for additional inspections, the estimate may increase by as much as 15%. This 15% will be for CSC's use, since the contractor will provide the complete estimate for the implementation of all actions. The only exception would be if unanticipated impacts occurred, such as a major landslide into the Kara-Balta River, requiring the application of additional environmental safeguard measures.

31

Secondly the expenses associated with these person-days, such as travel, per diem and communication have not been included.

Appendix 1 Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan

Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan is an integral part of the various mitigation measures identified in CEMWP. There are emergency response protocols that will be in force immediately after the start of work.

Although they are summarized in contract specifications, key measures are listed here as a reminder that the Safety Engineer will solve if / when accidents will occur:

1. Notification in case of emergency

For a quick response in the event of emergence of Emergency Environmental Situations, responsible persons will be appointed at the work sites. In the case of an emergency, responsible persons should inform the engineers of the relevant services and the environmental engineer. If necessary, the environmental engineer reports the emergency information to the management staff and specially authorized state bodies: The Ministry of Emergency Situations, State Agency for Environmental Protection and Forestry under the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic, State Inspectorate for Environmental and Technical Safety under the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic and Department of Disease Prevention and State Sanitary-Epidemiological Surveillance of the Ministry of Health of the Kyrgyz Republic.

2. Emergencies that must be prevented

Possible dangerous cases and risks of the construction process, which can potentially have a negative impact on the environment, personnel and the population, relevant responsible engineering persons should be able to assess, with a view to preventing them and taking the necessary measures. The process of risk identification and evaluation covers a comprehensive review that includes, but is not limited to:

- Work with heavy equipment and trucks;
- Transportation, processing of materials, lifting, equipment installation, construction of temporary devices, commissioning;
- Work in potentially hazardous areas and conditions (physical features of the terrain, waterways, erosion sites, extreme weather events, soil destruction, etc.);
- Works at height / or at a deep point;
- The proximity of intensive traffic, the danger associated with working in a densely populated area, power lines, electrical equipment under voltage;
- Cases of sudden illness or injury of workers during construction.

The assessment process will be conducted regularly, taking into account environmental factors and dynamics.

Before starting work, the OHS Engineer and the health worker assigned to the project will be entrusted with the emergency response protocol.

3. Potential emergencies and measures to be taken

In case of any emergency, management staff should contact and assist in its elimination.

Potential cases	Actions	Responsible persons and authorities
Fire	Immediately evacuate all personnel to a secure area Call the fire brigade. Notify management staff.	Project manager
Heavy rain with a hurricane, flooding, washaway or subsidence on the site.	Stop work, take measures to eliminate possible injuries of personnel. Investigate the causes of washaway and subsidence, and	Project manager
Damage of water pipe, sewer pipe, etc.	Take urgent measures to eliminate leaks. Take measures to prevent pollution of sewage by the environment. Urgently contact with local emergency services. Inform local authorities.	Project manager

In the office of construction works, there Journal of Registration of Emergencies and Accidents, Personnel Injury Events, etc. in which all data of such cases and measures taken are recorded.

Before starting work, all personnel are instructed on possible emergencies and measures for their prevention and response.

4. Emergency contact details

In the construction work office, project manager at the site, all engineering specialists should have contact details of all services required in case of emergency.

These data are prepared jointly by environmental and safety engineers and issued to all engineers and technicians.

Appendix 2

Safety, Health and Hygiene Plan

1.General requirements

A qualified specialist will be responsible for environmental and occupational safety and health measures, who will jointly coordinate actions on health and hygiene issues. This will be an OHS Engineer. An agreement will be concluded with local medical institutions before starting work on the creation of a Protocol to address urgent medical needs.

2. Measures to be undertaken

When applying for a job, a successful applicant should;

- Submit a medical certificate or get a medical check provided by Contractor;
- Be instructed on safety, hygiene and sanitary requirements;
- Provided with protective clothing, work gloves, shoes, equipment and personal protective equipment (helmet, goggles, ear protection, etc.)

Contractor undertakes to provide:

- Constant availability and access to clean drinking water;
- Timely and high-calorie three meals a day;
- Safe access of the local community to their homes and clear labeling of hazardous areas;
- Timely and safe disposal of waste generated in the workplace, wastewater to prevent unsanitary conditions on the project road.

All necessary measures will be taken to protect the health of staff and workers, including sexually transmitted diseases (STDs). The confidentiality associated with the STD record will be strictly observed.

Unauthorized access of outsider to the work area will be strictly controlled.

All workplaces will be equipped with first aid and necessary medicines.

Materials and raw materials safe for human health and the environment will be used during the work.

When using a variety of toxic chemicals, all safety measures will be strictly followed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

Contractor will work closely with local law enforcement and other government agencies.

In case of a temporary suspension of construction work due to seasonal events or for any other reason, Contractor shall warrant that the construction site will remains in a safe condition. He will appoint a responsible representative who will be responsible for protection the facility

during the entire period when the work is not being carried out.

Appendix 3

Details of waste management plan

1. Introduction

Within any construction project, waste is generated, that must be managed through a planned set of activities, as otherwise, it may damage the project environment. This waste includes garbage, wastewater, construction waste and hazardous substances such as liquid fuels, oils, chemicals, cartridges, oily rags, rags, used filters, etc., polluted soil, all kinds of light bulbs, batteries, etc. The main construction waste of this project will be old asphalt, sub-base materials, and several old culvert pipes.

2. Coverage of the Construction Waste Management Plan (CWMP)

This CWMP addresses issues related to waste management in construction, operation of various construction and post-construction projects. The CWMP covers the following main areas:

- Types and amounts of waste generated during construction and operation, including chemical and hazardous materials, household and liquid waste.
- Measures to mitigate the consequences of accidents, spills and other incidents that may have impact on the environment as a result of waste management during construction and operation.

This plan should be considered as an operational document that will be updated and supplemented with information at all stages of construction and operation.

3. Waste management requirements

The main waste management requirements for this project as bellow:

- Minimize the amount of waste dumped to the landfill
- Reduce to the maximum the quantity of recovered material for reuse or recycling
- All waste must be disposed of in accordance with national environmental legislation, regulations, and guidelines
- Minimize complaints about waste management during construction.

4. Basic principles of waste management

Prevention of waste generation will be achieved through the use of safe products and materials, optimization of procurement processes.

Construction waste reuse will be achieved through the use of materials in the early stages which may be used again during the construction period. These are materials such as wood cut block, pallets, sandbags, old asphalt, scrap metal, etc.

Environmental engineer is responsible for EMP implementation, employee training and monitoring.

5. EMP Implementation

The EMP will be distributed to all subcontractors working on the project. Contractor will hold a discussion and explain the objectives and processes of waste treatment produced by subcontractors.

The following items will be presented at the discussion:

- waste management requirements;
- review of waste generation processes;
- waste disposal sites;
- waste separation requirements;
- requirements for compliance with the necessary conditions.

An open discussion will be held on proposals / comments on the effectiveness of the plan. At future meetings, management staff will determine what type of waste is likely to be produced in the near future and will instruct subcontractors to emplacement of waste for recycling or disposal.

6. Distribution

The construction project manager should distribute copies of this plan to CEE, IPIG, the construction site manager and each subcontractor involved in this activity. The EMP will be periodically reviewed.

7. Types of waste generated during construction

Two types of waste can be generated within the project:

- Safe;
- Hazardous..

8. The safe construction waste includes: barren rock, old asphalt, inert materials, concrete structures, non-ferrous metals, glass that can be safely placed on the landfill. Barren rock is mainly found in borrow-pit mining. Techniques and places of waste storage will be agreed with CEE, and environmental authorities of the Sokuluk, Moscovskiy and Jayilskiy districts.

9. Hazardous waste includes:

Hazardous Waste Class I

-Various chemicals;

- -Paints and adhesives;
- -Fuel and oil; and,

-Plastic concrete mix.

Hazardous Waste Class II

-Electronics / electrical equipment;

-Incandescent lamp, halogen lamp;

-PCB;

-cooling liquid;

Hazardous Waste Class III

- -sewage water;
- -sewage;
- -Contaminated soil;

-Asbestos.

10. Necessary requirements in the technical specification for waste management

The technical specification of the project on waste management noted that the requirements of the regulatory legal acts of the Kyrgyz Republic: the Law on environmental protection, the Law on production and consumption waste must be observed in a strict manner. All waste generated during the reconstruction of the road should be placed in a field agreed with the Engineer and the relevant state environmental authorities.

11. Management of waste generated in construction camps.

The table below provides detailed information on how to manage the various types of waste generated during the project in construction camps and at the construction site. Terms of use and disposal of waste are discussed, agreed and recorded in advance. Photos of the conditions of prior use are stored in the project documentation.

Construction	Used Material that	Principles of general
activity	generated waste	management
Operation of	General waste:	Recyclable material and
construction camps	- recyclable waste	General waste are
(food, offices,	(dry waste,	transported to local
residential areas,	cardboard);	authorized landfills
warehouses, etc.)	- packaging materials	
	and office waste;	All pallets are collected by
	- scrap,	suppliers and returned for
	- aerosol,	reuse.
	 empty container, 	
	- banks,	
	- Steel barrels,	
	- pallets	
	- office paper and	
	other waste	
	Medical waste	Medical waste will be
		disposed of with other
		waste as there is no
		hazardous infectious
		waste.
Office waste,	Used ink paint,	Removed to a local
construction and	cassettes for printers,	permitted landfills
storage waste	consumer electronics	
	and electrical	
	equipment, computer	
	equipment, mobile	
	phones, etc.	
Workshop for the	Oil filters, air filters,	Removed to designated
maintenance of	dust filters, paper	places
	filters.	

Management of waste generated in construction camps

Construction activity	Used Material that generated waste	Principles of general management
machinery and equipment	Batteries (wet lead acid)	Removed to designated places
	Used oil, rags, soil contaminated with oil, etc.	Removed to designated places
	Used rubber tires	
	Used bitumen barrels or containers	It should be stored in a protected place, which eliminates leakage to the soil surface. Return for reuse.
Rehabilitation and restoration work after the completion of works and the closure of the construction camp	Construction materials, concrete, scrap metal, slabs, plastic, constructed pipes, electrical wiring, etc.	Before restoration, all of these materials will be offered to local residents for reuse. The remaining waste will be transported to local landfills.

Management of waste generated in construction camps.

Construction activity	Used Material that generated	Principles of general
Road works	Barren rock	Barren rock should not be placed on private lands without the permission of the owner or not unloaded into water bodies. Barren rock will be stored in designated areas
	Asphalt	The issue of the use or storage of old asphalt is being solved.
Materials from old bridges and culvert pipies	Concrete slab materials, metal. Concrete and reinforced concrete	It will be transferred to the RMU for use in other projects. Placement at approved landfills or in designated storage areas
Boxes, packaging materials	Packing	Excessive clean materials will be offered to local landowners
Spill cleanup	Contaminated soil	Contractor will transport contaminated soil for burial in a designated area

12. Termination of waste production

Before completing work on certain sections or places related to the road reconstruction, a representative of MostDorStroy LLC with representatives of the RMU, local administrations, environmental authorities and consulting company

specialists will study potential environmental issues and consequences related to the state of the environment the termination of construction works.

Infrastructure that will no longer be used for road works will be decommissioned or closed in accordance with environmental regulations and accepted environmental management practices.

13. Waste management activities

Solid waste

In the construction camp and at each construction site of the road section, at the asphalt concrete plant, at the crushing site, at the specific site, the appropriate places for the storage of relevant waste that needs to be recycled or reused will be determined in close consultation with representatives of local communities and state environmental administrators.

Waste disposal and removal will be coordinated with local administrations and environmental services.

Wastewater

The construction camp will be equipped with a septic tank, from which wastewater and sewage will be transported to special places. Export and placement services will be provided in accordance with the contract.

It should be necessary to install portable toilet in road construction sites, for which maintenance it is necessary to conclude an appropriate contract. Transportation of household waste from the construction camp is carried out in accordance with the contract. Transportation of waste from construction sites, asphalt plant, crushing plants, concrete plant will be carried out on a daily basis by a vehicle of public utilities and placed at the nearest landfills in accordance with the concluded agreement.

14.Information and training

Waste management plan. Training combines the main aspects of the Waste Management Plan, as well as personal responsibility for the management procedures.

15. Waste accounting and monitoring

This section discusses the requirements for recording and monitoring that will be implemented as part of this CEMWP.

Information obtained as a result of inspections and monitoring will be maintained by Contractor to include corrective measures identified during the inspection/ audit process.

This information will be provided by the relevant regulatory body in accordance with the requirements. Contractor will collect and store the following information:

- Registration of waste, including hazardous materials;
- copies of relevant permits, waste management contracts;
- environmental training and familiarization materials;
- Complaints and incidents;
- information about the inspection, including the rules;

16.Monitoring

The following tables describe waste management monitoring activities

Inspection and monitoring activities

Inspection and monitoring activities	Periodicity
Solid waste	
Monitoring the collection, proper disposal and storage of waste in accordance with the EMP	Permanent
Monitoring the timely removal and disposal of waste at the site	Weekly
Inspection of waste activities. Are there appropriate permissions, contracts for the placement, removal and disposal.	Monthly
Overview of waste management: conditions of placement, storage, export, monitoring procedures in accordance with EMP.	Monthly
Liquid waste	
Monitoring the conditions for receiving and storing wastewater in the construction camp.	Permanent
Monitoring the installation and operation of portable toilet at the road construction sites.	According to contract
Control over the export of wastewater by special transport	Permanent
Inspection of septic tanks in the construction camp after completion of construction.	After completion of work
Transport vehicles	
Inspection and control of vehicles for integrity, excluding spillage, and leakage	Permanent